
 

 

Lancashire County Council 
 
Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
 
Tuesday, 2nd October, 2012 at 10.30 am in Cabinet Room 'C' - County Hall, 
Preston  
 
Agenda 
 
Part 1 (Open to Press and Public) 
 
No. Item  
 
1. Apologies    

 
2. Constitution: Chair and Deputy Chair; Membership; 

Terms of Reference of the Commons and Town 
Greens Sub-Committee   

(Pages 1 - 4) 

 
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interests    

 Members are asked to consider any Pecuniary 
Interests they may have to disclose to the meeting in 
relation to matters under consideration on the Agenda. 

 

 
4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 31 January 2012   (Pages 5 - 8) 

 
5. Section 16 Commons Act 2006 

Request for the County Council to join as Applicant 
to deregister common land near Reaps Moss, 
Lancashire and to offer replacement common land 
both crossed by Footpath 394, Bacup 
   

(Pages 9 - 36) 

 
6. Commons Act 2006  

Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2009 as amended 
Regulation 44 
 
Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be 
recorded in respect of some of the Rights of 
Common being grazing rights registered as 
attached to land at Manor House Farm, Overton, 
being Entry 1 in the Rights section of Register Unit 
CL193 
   

(Pages 37 - 44) 

 



7. Commons Act 2006  
Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2009 as amended 
Regulation 44 
 
Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be 
recorded in respect of some of the Rights of 
Common being grazing rights registered as 
attached to land at Colloway Farm, Overton, being 
Entry 3 in the Rights section of Register Unit CL193 
   

(Pages 45 - 52) 

 
8. Commons Act 2006 

Applications made to the Registration Authority yet 
to be determined 
   

(Pages 53 - 56) 

 
9. Urgent Business    

 An item of urgent business may only be considered 
under this heading where, by reason of special 
circumstances to be recorded in the Minutes, the Chair 
of the meeting is of the opinion that the item should be 
considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
Wherever possible, the Chief Executive should be 
given advance warning of any Member's intention to 
raise a matter under this heading. 

 

 
10. Date of Next Meeting    

 The next meeting of the Sub-Committee has been 
scheduled to be held on the Monday and Tuesday, 28 
and 29 January 2013, at 10am, at County Hall, 
Preston. 

 

 
 I M Fisher 

County Secretary and Solicitor 
 

County Hall 
Preston 
 
 

 

 



 
 

Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
Meeting to be held on 2 October 2012 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
N/A 

 
Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
Constitution: Chair and Deputy Chair; Membership; Terms of Reference 
(Appendix ‘A’ refers) 
 
Contact for further information:  
Gary Halsall, 01772 533419, Office of the Chief Executive 
gary.halsall@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary and Recommendation  
 
The Sub-Committee is asked: to note: 
 

i. The appointment of County Councillor A Thornton and County Councillor S 
Leadbetter as Chair and Deputy Chair of the Sub-Committee for the 
remainder of the 2012/13 municipal year; 

ii. The membership of the Sub-Committee following the County Council’s 
annual meeting; and  

iii. The Terms of Reference of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 
Background and Advice 
 
The County Council at its annual meeting on 24 May 2012 agreed that the Sub-
Committee shall comprise 11 County Councillors (on the basis of 6 Conservative 
members, 2 Labour members, 1 Liberal Democrat member, 1 Green member and 1 
Idle Toad member).  It was also agreed that nominations of County Councillors to 
serve on the Sub-Committee should be submitted to the County Secretary and 
Solicitor by the respective political groups. 
 
The following County Councillors have subsequently been nominated to serve on the 
Sub- Committee for the following year: 
 
    County Councillors (11): 
 

T Brown M Parkinson 
C Coates P Rigby 
J Jackson T Sharratt 
T Jones P Steen 
S Leadbetter J Sumner 

A Thornton 
 

The Full Council also appointed County Councillor A Thornton and County Councillor 
S Leadbetter as Chair and Deputy Chair of the Sub-Committee for the remainder of 
the 2012/13 municipal year. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 

 
A copy of the Sub-Committee’s Terms of Reference is attached at Appendix ‘A’. 
 
Consultations 
 
N/A 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 
There are no risk management implications arising from this item. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
Full Council papers 

 
24 May 2012 
 

 
Janet Mulligan, Office of 
the Chief Executive, 01772 
533361 
 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 

Page 2



Appendix 'A' 

 

Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 

 
Composition and role 
 
The Sub-Committee shall be established by the Regulatory Committee and 
comprise eleven County Councillors to authorise appropriate alterations to the 
Registers of Common land and Town Greens. 
 
Meetings are open to the public but they may be excluded where information 
of an exempt or confidential nature is being discussed – see Access to 
Information Procedure Rules set out at Appendix ‘H’ to this Constitution.  
 
Terms of Reference 
 
The Committee shall carry out the following functions: 
 
1. To exercise the Council's powers under the Commons Registration 

(New Land) Regulations 1969 to register common land or town or 
village greens (except where the power is to be exercised solely for the 
purpose of giving effect to an exchange of land by an order under 
Section 19(3) or Schedule 3 of the Acquisition of Land Act 1981, or an 
order under Section 147 of the Inclosure Act 1845). 

 
2. To make recommendations to the Cabinet Member  

for Economic Development, Environment and Planning on matters 
under the Commons Registration Act 1965 as amended and 
Regulations thereunder where responsibility lies with the Cabinet. 

 
3. To amend the register in respect of rights of common under  

Regulation 29 of the Commons Registration (General) Regulations 
1966, namely to apportion, vary, extinguish, release or transfer a right 
of common. 

 
4. To exercise the duties powers and functions of the County Council as 

Registration Authority under Part 1 Commons Act 2006. 
 

Page 3



Page 4



 
 
Lancashire County Council 
 
Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
 
Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday, 31st January, 2012 at 10.00 am in 
Cabinet Room 'C' - County Hall, Preston 
 
 
Present: 

  
 

County Councillors 
 

T Brown 
C Coates 
J Jackson 
A Jones 
M Parkinson 
 

P Rigby 
T Sharratt 
P Steen 
J Sumner 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 

Due to apologies being received by the Chairman and the absence of the Deputy 
Chairman, it was proposed that County Councillor T Jones be the Chairman for 
this meeting only.  
 
Resolved: That County Councillor T Jones be the Chairman for this meeting 
only. 
 
 
2. Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from County Councillor A Thornton. 
 
 
3. Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests 

 
There were no personal/prejudicial interests declared. 
 
 
4. Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 September 2011 

 
Resolved: That, the Minutes of the meeting held on the 22 September 2011, be 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 
 

5. Commons Act 2006 
Commons Registration Act 1965 
Commons Registration (General) Regulations 1966 (as amended) 
 
Application for the Amendment of the Register in relation to Rights 
of Common on Common Land registered as Entry 9 in the Rights 
Section of Register Unit CL23 
 

A report was presented on an Application from John Mark Lawson and Doreen 
Lawson trading as 'J & A Lawson & Son' of High Threaber Farm, Westhouse, to 
register a transfer of rights of common away from the land. 
 
The Sub-Committee had previously considered a report regarding the Rights 
Section of Register Unit CL23 at its meeting on 24 September 2010 in which it 
had expressed concern that a mistake had perhaps been made by the Solicitors 
acting on behalf of Mrs Bracken in 1995 and therefore agreed to defer the 
Application for a period of 3 months on the grounds that a deed could perhaps be 
found in relation to the severance of 33 sheep gaits on Ireby Fell.  The Sub-
Committee requested that Jane Turner, Senior Solicitor, write to the Solicitors 
acting on behalf of the Applicant detailing the Sub-Committee's decision. 
 
It was reported that the Solicitors for the applicant were informed and they said 
they were instructed to contact Mr Haslam’s Solicitors to see if he would assist by 
providing the copy of the 1970 Conveyance. Despite reminders nothing further 
was submitted and it was therefore thought appropriate that the matter be 
returned to the Sub-Committee for determination. 
 
The Sub-Committee was reminded that as previously stated, the sale of the rights 
without the land was evidenced only by the receipt from Mr Diggle in 1971. This 
appeared to be after at least some of the land passed to Mr Haslam and no Deed 
had been found. 
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that there was still not sufficient evidence of 
legal severance and although purchased by the Applicants there was not 
sufficient evidence that Mrs Bracken held the rights in gross to sell them. 
 
Resolved: That the Application be not accepted and that the register be not 
amended. 
 
 
6. Commons Act 2006  

Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008 
Amended by Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2009 
 
Opportunity to make oral representations under Regulation 28 
 

The Sub-Committee considered a report on how an applicant or other party 
should be offered the opportunity to make oral representations and the options 

Page 6



 
 

available to Registration Authorities. Guidance from DEFRA on the matter of oral 
representations was also provided in the report. 
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that the procedure adopted by the County 
Council as the Commons Registration Authority should satisfy the Statutory 
Regulations and be fair and reasonable. Concerns raised by the County 
Secretary and Solicitor were also presented in the report. 
 
The Sub-Committee was asked to consider the options available and the 
concerns raised in the report and to decide how best to put in place a procedure 
that was fair and reasonable and which satisfied Regulation 28. 
 
Two options were then presented to the Sub-Committee for consideration, these 
were; 
 

1. Should representations be made to an officer/Solicitor and a Member of 
the Sub-Committee; or 

2. Should representations be made to the full Sub-Committee 
 
The Sub-Committee agreed that all representations should be made to the full 
Sub-Committee. 
 
In relation to oral representations which might raise something previously 
unknown yet relevant, with any subsequent decision needed to be deferred, the 
Sub-Committee suggested that a draft procedure note on making oral 
representations be produced. Some discussion was had at the meeting on who 
should be given speaking rights and at what stage offers should be made. 
 
The Sub-Committee agreed that applicants, or their representatives and any 
interested/other parties be given speaking rights. The Sub-Committee also 
agreed that the offer be made 14 days prior to the Sub-Committee meeting to 
determine the application and that speakers be given five minutes each to make 
their oral representations or such longer time as agreed. The Sub-Committee 
suggested that these matters be also included in the draft procedure note. 
 
It was proposed that the draft procedure note be sent to the Chair of the 
Regulatory Committee for approval. Where upon it was; 
 
Resolved: That, the County Secretary and Solicitor be asked to prepare a 
procedure note on the making of oral representations to be agreed in consultation 
with the Chair of the Regulatory Committee. 
 
7. Date of Next Meeting 

 
The next meeting of the Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee will be held 
on Monday and Tuesday, 23 and 24 April 2012 at 10am, County Hall, Preston. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 

 I M Fisher 
County Secretary and Solicitor 

County Hall 
Preston 

 

 

Page 8



 
 

Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
Meeting to be held on 2 October 2012 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
Whitworth 

 
 
Section 16 Commons Act 2006 
Request for the County Council to join as Applicant to deregister common 
land near Reaps Moss, Lancashire and to offer replacement common land both 
areas of land crossed by Footpath 394, Bacup 
(Appendices 'A', 'B', 'C' and 'D' refer) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Jane Turner, 01772 532813, Office of the Chief executive, 
jane.turner@lancashire.gov.uk  
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
Coronation Power Ltd is requesting that Lancashire County Council, as Highway 
Authority, joins in the application for the de-registration of small areas of common 
land unit CL472. Part of Public Footpath 394 crosses one of these areas and 
crosses the land offered in exchange. The surface of Footpath 394 Bacup is publicly 
maintainable and its surface vests in the highway authority  
 
Recommendation 
 

i. That the Sub-Committee agrees to Lancashire County Council becoming a 
joint applicant with Mr J Dearden and Mr P Harman in the application to 
DEFRA Number COM351 under section 16 of the Commons Registration Act 
for the de-registration of that part of CL472 crossed by Footpath 394 Bacup 
to allow the construction of a wind farm on Inchfield Moor by Coronation 
Power and for the designation of replacement land. 

 
ii. That representations are made to express concerns that public access and 

re-registration is secured. 
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
Coronation Power is proposing to develop a wind farm at Crook Hill which is situated 
on the edge of the County of Lancashire. The proposed development site covers 
registered common land within the boundaries of Lancashire County Council, 
Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council CL472 (the registration papers are held at 
Calderdale). 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



 
 

Most of the area where the  wind farm access road and areas for the turbines are to 
be constructed has already been deregistered from the common (Application COM  
135). The new boundary of common land is shown on the plan attached at Appendix 
'A'. At that time it was not appreciated that highway authorities may be an owner 
which ought to have joined the application.  
 
The Sub Committee will recall that this is now the case. It will recall its decision in 
September 2011 following which the County Council joined in an application to de-
register common land because of its ownership of highways on the land as highway 
authority.  
 
Small areas of common land CL472 (twelve in number) shown edged red on the 
application plan attached hereto as appendix 'A') are now required to be de-
registered and a second application has been made to DEFRA (appendix 'C' refers). 
DEFRA’s reference is COM 351. 
 
Owners of the common land (release land) may apply to de-register their land as 
common land and offer exchange land to replace the de-registered land 
(replacement land). An application has been made to DEFRA (appendix 'C' refers) 
and is done so under section 16 of the Commons Act 2006.  
 
Under S16 Commons Act 2006 the owner of any land registered as common land is 
the only person who can apply to the Secretary of State for the land to cease to be 
so registered. If the release land is more than 200 square metres the application 
must include a proposal that some replacement land be registered as common land 
in place of the release land. In determining the application the Secretary of State 
shall have regard to interests of those having rights on or occupying the release 
land; the interests of the neighbourhood; the public interest (including nature 
conservation, conservation of landscape, protection of public rights of access and 
protection of archaeological remains and features of historic interest); and any other 
relevant matter. Consents of any leaseholders or charge holders of the land are 
required and owners of replacement land have to join in the application. 
 
Under S61 Commons Act an "owner" is the holder of the legal estate in fee simple. 
It is advised that although the surface of publicly maintainable highways is vested in 
the County Council, the title is not a pure fee simple but is a determinable fee simple. 
It is considered that this is sufficient title to be an "owner" under the Commons Act. 
 
The two owners of the Common land to be de-registered under this application are 
shown on the application as Mr J Dearden and Mr P Harman but the County Council 
is also regarded as having sufficient ownership interest in the surface of Public 
Footpath 394 such that Coronation Power have been advised by the Planning 
Inspectorate that Lancashire County Council as highway authority should be a joint 
signatory to the application.  Coronation Power therefore ask that the County Council 
consider the matter and become a joint signatory. (Appendix 'D' refers) 
 
This application, if successful, will result in the release of 14,720m2 of common land 
(which includes the area of highway being footpath 394 Bacup). An area of 
15,305m2 is being offered as replacement land immediately adjacent to CL472 and 

Page 10



 
 

within the County boundary. This is also crossed by Footpath 394 Bacup. Plan at 
appendix 'A' refers. 
 
Following completion of the construction work the Committee will note that public 
access will be permitted and it is planned to re-register the released land that is not 
required for the day to day operation of the wind farm.  An unilateral undertaking has 
been offered under S106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Attached at Appendix 'A' is a plan of the application land showing the area of CL472 
and the area of replacement land within Lancashire. 
 
Attached at Appendix 'B' is a plan showing the location of Footpath 394 Bacup. 
 
The application form and its Appendix is attached as Appendix 'C'.  
 
The letter from the planning Inspectorate is at Appendix 'D'. 
 
If the Highway Authority does not join in the application it is thought unlikely that the 
part of the small red triangle affected by the footpath in County Council ownership, 
required for construction would not be able to be de-registered by the Secretary of 
State. The developer would presumably need to then apply for consent to do works. 
It is thought that the other small pieces of application land could proceed to be 
considered.  The County Council’s discretion must be exercised reasonably and in 
this matter should not be based on whether a wind farm is thought to be appropriate. 
It is advised that Footpath 394 remaining on common land or not, or being on land 
which becomes new common land does not unduly affect the County Council's 
powers or duties in respect of footpath 394 although if major works of maintenance 
were required consent for works may be required if it were a section on common 
land. 
 
The Committee will note that Coronation Power offers to permit public access and 
re-register common land. This is as similar to what was offered in the matter 
previously considered. The sub committee had their concerns. In the decision on 
COM 283 the Inspector considering the matter for the Secretary of State was content 
with the unilateral undertaking to provide for public access and refers to it granting a 
non revocable licence to the public for access and a similar licence to the 
commoners. He did however find that the S106 unilateral undertaking demonstrated 
the landowner intention to re dedicate re-dedication of land was a matter for the 
landowner. 
 
It is suggested that the Committee may once again wish to express concerns as to 
how such access and re-registration is secured. 
 
Consultations 
 
N/A 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 

Page 11



 
 

 
Risk management 
 
Legal 
The section 16 application is required to allow the construction of a wind farm for 
which there is planning approval in place from the Secretary of State. Should a 
decision be taken to not join the application with Coronation Power then Lancashire 
County Council could be seen to be frustrating the planning process and preventing 
approved development leading to legal challenges and possible financial penalties 
along with damage to Lancashire County Council's reputation. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
File 3.669 

 
 

 
Jane Turner/Office of Chief 
Executive/ 01772 532813 
 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 
 

Page 12



Appendix 'A'

Page 13



Page 14



Appendix 'B'

Page 15



Page 16



Appendix 'C'

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Appendix 'D'

Page 35



Page 36



 
 

Commons and Greens Sub-Committee 
Meeting to be held on 2 October 2012 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
Heysham 

 
Commons Act 2006  
Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 as amended 
Regulation 44 
 
Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be recorded in respect of some 
of the Rights of Common being grazing rights registered as attached to land at 
Manor House Farm, Overton, being Entry 1 in the Rights section of Register 
Unit CL193 
(Appendices 'A' and ‘B’ refer) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Jane Turner, (01772) 532 813, Office of the Chief Executive 
jane.turner@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
An Application from AJ Bargh for a Declaration of Entitlement to record his rights to 
graze 34 cattle on CL193. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application be accepted in part and a Declaration of Entitlement be 
recorded in the Commons Register in accordance with the Commons Registration 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 that Mr Alan John Bargh is entitled to 
exercise part of the right attached to Manor House Farm namely the right to graze 
33 head of cattle over the whole of CL193. 

 

 
Background and Advice  
 
The Commons Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) makes provision for the registration of 
common land and of town and village greens.  Registration Authorities were created 
to maintain two registers, one for common land and the other for village greens.  The 
County Council is the Registration Authority for the County of Lancashire and has 
previously delegated powers and functions concerning alteration of the registers to 
the Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee. 
 
The 2006 Act makes provision by Regulations for commons registration authorities 
to record in their registers of common land that a person is entitled to exercise some 
or all of the rights attached to a particular piece of land. The rights remain attached 
to the land but can at the moment be exercised by the owner and the application in 
this matter is that this is the case and should now be registered.   

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



 
 

 
Regulation 44 states that applications for a declaration of entitlement must be made 
by a freehold or leasehold owner of the land to which rights are attached   
 
In this matter rights are attached to Manor House Farm shown edged red on the 
supplemental map appendix 'A' refers. The rights attached to this land are to graze 
100 head of cattle over CL193. 
 
A copy of Land registry title LAN 43529 has been provided. These show that part of 
the farm as shown on the supplemental map is owned by Alan John Bargh as shown 
on the plan marked Appendix 'B'. It has been calculated that this land is 33.3% of the 
Manor House farm land on the supplemental map. 
 
33.3% of the grazing rights is calculated as the right to graze 33 cattle. 
Mathematically it actually produces a fractional quantity but, following guidance from 
DEFRA it is advised that a right to graze a fractional animal is not recognised in law 
and the fractional right has been rounded down. The Applicant is aware of this. 
 
Notice of the application has been duly given according to the Regulations and no 
response has been received. 
 
It is advised that if the application is well founded the appropriate amendment to the 
register shall be made.  Here it is advised that although the application was to record 
34 cattle the correct entitlement is the rounded down figure of 33 cattle. It is advised 
that the Application be accepted in part. 
 
Consultations 
 
Notice of the application was given on the County Council web site and also to all 
parties who have requested to be notified of applications under the 2006 Act. 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 
Consideration has been given to the risk management implications associated with 
this proposal.  The Sub-Committee is advised that, provided the decision is taken in 
accordance with the advice and guidance given, and is based upon relevant 
information contained in the report, there are no significant risks associated with the 
decision-making process. 
 
 

Page 38



 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
File of papers denoted 
3.614 

 
 

 
Jane Turner 
Office of Chief Executive 
Ext 32813 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 

Page 39



Page 40



Appendix 'A'
Page 41



Page 42



Appendix B

Page 43



Page 44



 
 

Commons and Greens Sub-Committee 
Meeting to be held on 2 October 2012 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
Heysham 

 
Commons Act 2006  
Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 as amended 
Regulation 44 
 
Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be recorded in respect of some 
of the Rights of Common being grazing rights registered as attached to land at 
Colloway Farm, Overton, being Entry 3 in the Rights section of Register Unit 
CL193 
(Appendices 'A' and ‘B’ refer) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Jane Turner, (01772) 532 813, Office of the Chief Executive 
jane.turner@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
An Application from AJ Bargh for a Declaration of Entitlement to record his rights to 
graze 21.57 cattle and 7.19 sheep on CL193. 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the application be accepted in part and a Declaration of Entitlement be 
recorded in the Commons Register in accordance with the Commons Registration 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 that Mr Alan John Bargh and Mr John 
Jacob Bargh are entitled to exercise part of the right attached to Colloway Farm 
namely the right to graze 21 head of cattle and 7 sheep over the whole of CL193. 

 

 
Background and Advice  
 
The Commons Act 2006 (the 2006 Act) makes provision for the registration of 
common land and of town and village greens.  Registration Authorities were created 
to maintain two registers, one for common land and the other for village greens.  The 
County Council is the Registration Authority for the County of Lancashire and has 
previously delegated powers and functions concerning alteration of the registers to 
the Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee. 
 
The 2006 Act makes provision by Regulations for commons registration authorities 
to record in their registers of common land that a person is entitled to exercise some 
or all of the rights attached to a particular piece of land. The rights remain attached 
to the land but can at the moment be exercised by the owner and the application in 
this matter is that this is the case and should now be registered.   

Agenda Item 7

Page 45



 
 

 
Regulation 44 states that applications for a declaration of entitlement must be made 
by a freehold or leasehold owner of the land to which rights are attached. 
 
In this matter rights are attached to Colloway Farm shown edged red on the 
supplemental map appendix 'A' refers. The rights attached to this land are to graze 
150 head of cattle and 50 sheep over CL193. 
 
Copies of various Deeds have been provided. These show that the farm as shown 
on the supplemental map, along with its grazing rights, was purchased in 1961 by Mr 
and Mrs Jackson. In 1981 part of the land was purchased by John Jacob Bargh and 
Alan John Bargh in partnership as J Bargh and Son. The part purchased was shown 
on the Conveyance plan (Appendix 'B' refers). It has been calculated that this land is 
14.5% of the Colloway farm land on the supplemental map. 
 
14.5 % of the grazing rights is calculated as the right to graze 21 head of cattle and 7 
sheep. Mathematically it actually produces a fractional quantity but, following 
guidance from DEFRA it is advised that a right to graze a fractional animal is not 
recognised in law and the fractional right has been rounded down. The Applicant is 
aware of this. 
 
Notice of the application has been duly given according to the Regulations and no 
response has been received. 
 
It is advised that if the application is well founded the appropriate amendment to the 
register shall be made.  Here it is advised that although the application was to record 
21.57 cattle and 7.19 sheep the correct entitlement is the rounded down figures of 21 
cattle and 7 sheep. It is advised that the Application be accepted in part. 
 
There is a further difficulty in this matter as the evidence of ownership indicates that 
the applicant is a joint owner not a sole owner and it is therefore advised that the 
Declaration of entitlement be in both names of the owners. 
 
Consultations 
 
Notice of the application was given on the County Council web site and also to all 
parties who have requested to be notified of applications under the 2006 Act. 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 
Consideration has been given to the risk management implications associated with 
this proposal.  The Sub-Committee is advised that, provided the decision is taken in 
accordance with the advice and guidance given, and is based upon relevant 
information contained in the report, there are no significant risks associated with the 
decision-making process. 
 

Page 46



 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
File of papers denoted 
3.613 

 
 

 
Jane Turner 
Office of Chief Executive 
Ext 32813 

Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 

Page 47



Page 48



Appendix 'A'

Page 49



Page 50



Appendix 'B'

Page 51



Page 52



 
 

Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee 
Meeting to be held on 2 October 2012 
 

Electoral Division affected: 
All 

 
Commons Act 2006 
Applications made to the Registration Authority yet to be determined 
(Appendix 'A' refers) 
 
Contact for further information: 
Jane Turner, (01772) 532 813, Office of the Chief Executive, 
jane.turner@lancashire.gov.uk 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
This report sets out details of applications made to the Registration Authority to alter 
the register of common land or the register of town greens which are yet to be 
determined. 
 
Recommendation 
 
The Sub-Committee is asked to note the Schedule of Applications yet to be 
determined as set out in the report.  
 

 
Background and Advice  
 
The Sub-Committee will note that the applications listed in Appendix 'A' have been 
received under the Commons Act 2006 and are yet to be determined by the 
Authority and some may not ever be considered to be duly made. Those with 
Application numbers are considered to be duly made and will be at some stage of 
the procedure set out in Regulations under the Commons Act. 
 
These matters will be progressed as time and resources allow.   
 
Consultations 
 
N/A 
 
Implications:  
 
This item has the following implications, as indicated: 
 
Risk management 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 53



 
 

No significant risks have been identified in relation to the proposals contained within 
this report. 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
List of Background Papers 
 
Paper Date Contact/Directorate/Tel 
 
N/A  

 
 

 
 

 
Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 
 
N/A 
 

Page 54



Appendix 'A' 

Applications to register land as town green 

 

1. There are still three applications made prior to 2008 but which will be dealt 

with under the 2008 Regulations. 

2. Duly made Applications since 2008 are in respect of land at: 

• Simonstone (VG102)1 

• Lancaster (VG103) 

• Woodplumpton (VG104) 

• Eccleston (VG105) 
 

3. Those not yet duly made are in respect of land at: 

• Poulton 

• Whittingham 

• Ireby 

• Staining 

• Kilnhouse 

 

4. There are 10 Applications to record an event which happened 1970 – 2008 

under Schedule 3 e.g. a severance of rights, new common rights by 

prescription: 

• 7 are duly made 

• 3 are not yet duly made. 

 

5. There is one application under S10. 

6. There is one application under S19 (CA017). 

7. There are 12 applications to record a Declaration of Entitlement: 

• 6 duly made (CA003, CA016, CA004, CA005, CA015 and CA014) 

• 6 not yet duly made. 

 

                                                           
1 The Sub-Committee will note that the Regulatory Committee at its meeting held on 7 March 

2012, agreed to establish a Special Sub-Committee with the power to act in respect of 

Application No. VG102 relating to land at Simonstone, Ribble Valley. The site visit and a 

hearing have yet to be organised. The three members of the Special Sub-Committee for 

VG102 are County Councillors; T Jones (Chair), M Parkinson and P Rigby. 

 

Page 55



Appendix 'A' 

8. There are 12 applications to register waste land of a manor which should now 

be registered as common land (The Planning Inspectorate will determine 

these): 

• 1 is duly made (CA013). 

9. There are 4 notifications of decisions by the Secretary of State in respect of 

de-registration and exchange land. 

Page 56


	Agenda
	2 Constitution: Chair and Deputy Chair; Membership; Terms of Reference of the Commons and Town Greens Sub-Committee
	Appendix A

	4 Minutes of the Meeting held on 31 January 2012
	5 Section 16 Commons Act 2006 Request for the County Council to join as Applicant to deregister common land near Reaps Moss, Lancashire and to offer replacement common land both crossed by Footpath 394, Bacup
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	6 Commons Act 2006  Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 as amended Regulation 44  Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be recorded in respect of some of the Rights of Common being grazing rights registered as attached to land at Manor House Farm, Overton, being Entry 1 in the Rights section of Register Unit CL193
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	7 Commons Act 2006  Commons Registration (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2009 as amended Regulation 44  Application for a Declaration of Entitlement to be recorded in respect of some of the Rights of Common being grazing rights registered as attached to land at Colloway Farm, Overton, being Entry 3 in the Rights section of Register Unit CL193
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8 Commons Act 2006 Applications made to the Registration Authority yet to be determined
	Appendix A


